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7,293,875 99.13%
9.1.2
IFRS 7
IFRS 7
9.
9.1
9.1.2
2023 12 31 341
17
9.1.3
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2023 12 31
9.2
9.
9.2
95
12 12
2023 12 31
- - 6,282,546 - 1,011,329*
133,217 - - - -
- - -7,358,082 - -
- - -69,010 - -
133,217° - -1,144,546 - 1,011,329
*
ACG ACG
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IFRS
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IFRS 9
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2022 10 3
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IFRS

2023
S&P

2023 12 31
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2023 12 31 100%

IFRS 13

9.5

2023 12 31

2023 12 31
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- - 7,293,875 7,293,875
- - 7,293,875 7,293,875
2023 12 31
2023 12 31 +/-
( +-
7,293,875
9.
9.5
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
2023
6,814,213
479,662
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7,293,875
479,662
2022 9 16 2023 12 31
10.
2023 2024
CICAV-SIF
6,333,247
1,011,329
2024 12 2024
11.
2024 8 29

9.1.1
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as ai 51 December 2023

e LN Dol Mol rLpE ]
Assels

Cash snd cach equivalents 4 133217
Financial assets o fair value through profit of loss -] T2 RTS
Taotal aescts T AT 62
Linbilities

Redemption payable 758,082
(Mlver payables & 62,010
Total lHabilities 74270932
Total cquity and labilities TA27 492

Accompanying noles are an inicgral pari of the financial statemenis.
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the perfod from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) ie 3§ December 2023

For the period from
16 September 2022
{Date of commencement
of operailons) io
e N Dodlars Note 31 December 2023
Income
Interest income 21
Dhstnbuitson income 89504
Wt realised gains om financial asscts at faar value through
profit of boss 24213
Nt unrealised gains on linanoal assets ol (air value
through profit of ks 479 662
et foreign exchange ksses on cash and cash cquivalents (952)
Total income 591538
Exprnscs
Management foes B Hi R0
Audit foes 375
O grinsabion expenses 108174
Legal fees 11,938
Frefesssonnl lees 4,269
Bank charges 1,893
Total expenses 2345
Inercase in mel musets attributable to unithalders ASK OR2

Accompanying noles are an inicgral pari of the financiol stalements

B
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JEWEL BOX FUND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Changes in Equity

Sor the period from 16 September 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) fo 21 Docember 2023

Share Retminald

In US Dollars capital _____carnings Total
Balance at the beginning of the period - - .
Tssipance of rodeemable umnits 7,00, (M0 = 7 0 (W
Redemption of redecmable units {7 00 (b0 {158,082y (7358 082
Incrense in net assels afirbutable o umiiholders 355 082 158 082

Balance at the end of the perlod - - -

Accompanvimg morex are an integral part of the financial staremenis,

K
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Jor the period from 16 Seplember 2022 {Daie of commencement of operations) to 31 December 2023

For the period from
16 September 2022
(Date of commencement
of aperations) o
I 5N Dhollrs Nole 31 December 2023
Cash Mows from aperating activities
Inrease m net assets attrbatable o vatholders 158082
Aduxtmers for:
Imterest income (21%
Met realised gains on (nancial asscts st fan value through
profif o loss {24213
Net unrealised gains on (mancial assets at far valoe thiough
profit or Joss (ATR662)
Met forenzn exchange Josses on cash and cash equivalents 452
(144.862)
Increase m other payables 69 010
Purchase of financial assets at far value (rough profit or loss {fr, T (WD)
Cash used In operations (6865 852)
Intevest received 21
Net eash weed in aperating activities (6. M65.8531)
Cush Nows from Noancing activitles
Proceeds from sssmance of redeemable umis 7 Mk
Net cash from financing activities 7000, 800
Net imerease im cash anid cavh cquivalents 134,169
Cash and cash equivalents al the begimmng of the penosd -
Exchange losses on b and csh equivalents (952)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the period 4 13217

Accompanving mores are an Integral part of the finencial starements,

9

81/178



EDINETOOOO
Oo0O000000000000ogoonogognood(e4o001)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Sar the period from 16 September 202 (Dhate of commencement of operations) te 3§ December 2023

1. General information

Jewe] Box Fund (the “Fund™) 1s an open-ended unit trust established by the Trust [eed and s regrstered as an exempiod
trust under the Trust Act (Revised) of the Cavman kslands on 18 March 2022, The Fund has been established for a finite
penod and wall terminate 149 years after s extablishment unbess termmated earher. The Pund was regrstered under
Sechon (3] of the Mutial Finds Act (2021 Revioon) of the Caymian slands on 1 Jine 2002 wath segistiabion paiiber
1976214 s commenced operations on 16 September 2022

The Fund has been stractused as an investment fund 1o allow its unitholders 1 collectively invest in sccordance with the
investment objective and strtegics. The investment objective of the Fund is 10 purstie stable retums in mid-long term,
mmimtainng low conrelation wilh tadisonal asset clases, by diveisiliod mvestments into alicrnative assets mn e form of
fund of finds. In order 1o achicve the wyestment objective, the Investment Manager will invest the assgts of the Fund
premanty in wnderlyving funds of povate market of aliemative staateges

The mvestment activities of the Fund are managed by TORANOTEC Asset Managemem Lid (the “lnvestment
Manager™), and the administration of the Fund s delegated to Apex Fund Services (Cavman) Lid. (the = Administrator™)

L. Material accounting policies
The matenal accounting polscics applied m ihe preparation of (hese linancial stalements are st oul below,
L1 Basis of preparation

The financial statemients of the Fund have been propared in accordance wath IFRS Accounting Standards ("1IFRS™) and
the requrements of the Trast Deed. IFRS Accounting Standards comprese the Milowmg awthontative Icrature

* IFRS Accounting Standarnds

* |AS" Suandards

= Interpeetations developed by the IFRS Interpretations Committee {IFRIC® Interpretations) of its prodecessor bady, the
Standing Interpretations Committee (510 Interpretations).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, excepi For financial mstruments ol fur valoe
through profit o loss, which nre mesasured ot their fare valoe.

The preparation of financind statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of centam cntical sccounting cstimates.
It also requires the Triusiee (o exercmse its pudgonment mn the process of applymg the Fund's accountung polcies. The preas
mvolving o highet degree of judgement o complexily, on srers whene soaumptons and estimales are significant o the
linancial statements, are disclosed m Nowe 3,

Ihe Investment Mannger comumits to cover all or a portion of the Fund’s operating costs, as may be necessary, o ensure
the contmuity of the Fund in the next iwelve months afier the perwod ended 31 December 2023, The Investment Manager
has no resmon 1o believe that the Fund will not continue ax a going concem m the vear ahead and has adopied the gong
concern basis i preparing the financisl sttements. The Investment Manager has established that there s no material
unceramty that casts doubt on the ability of the Fand 1o continne as 8 gomg concan

22 New standards, amendments and interpretations

fa) Standerads amd amendments to extsting stamdards effective 16 September 2022
 Dhsclosure of Accounting Policies = Amendments to [AS 1 and [FRS Practice Stadement 2 {effective | Jamuary 2023)

The Fund has adopted the above standard and interpretahion and ihe amcndment did not have a matenal elfect on the
financial statements of e Fund bot it has impacied the sccounting policy mfrmation disclosed in the linancial

stntements. The Trustor has reviewsd the smendments 1o the nocounting policy and the miommution has been disclosed n
line with amendments.

[ L1]
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Jor the peried from 16 September 2022 (Date of commencemeni af operations) to 2f December 2023

2 Material accounting policies (continued)
2.2 New standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)

by Stamalorsdy, covenalements and interpretations thal are pof vel gffective and bave not been carfy adoptod by tie Fund
A number of pew standards. amendments o standaids and mlerpretabions are clfective for penods beginning
afler 16 September 2022, and have not been carly adopled m preparmg these linancial statements

o Classafbcaton of Lisbilmies as Corrent or Noo-current < Amendments to LAS | {ellective | Jannary J024)

» Non-current habilines with Covennmts - Amendments to 1A% 1 (eflective 1 January 2024)

# IFRS I8 Presentation and [sclosure in Financin] Statements (effective | Jnnuary 2027)

Mone of the above new standards, amendments 1o standands and inlerpretations are expected to have o material effect on
the financial stements of the Fuskd, The sbove standards and amendments will be adopied by the Fund when spplicable
and effective

L3} Structured entithes

A structured entity 15 an entity that has been designed =0 that voting or samilar nghts are not the dominant foctor m
decidmg who controls the entity, such ax when any voting nghts relate 1o admmistrative tasks only and the relevant
activities ane directed by means of contractual arangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the following
leatures of altibules: (2) restncted schivities, (b) 8 parrow and well-delined objective, such ax 1o provide inveeimen
oppertunitics for investors by passing on risks and rewards asocmated with the assets of the stroctured entity o investors,
(eh il Techent ety 1o perinit the structuned catity 1o linance s sctivities withoul subofdsiated linancial sappoi and
{d} financing in the form of multiple contmcmally linked instruments to investors thal create concentrations of credit or
other ks (ranches)

The Fund comsiders all of its mvestiments m other funds (lovestee Fends™) o be investments m enconsoldated structurad
entities. The Fund mvests in Investes Funds whose ohjectives mnge from achieving modium 1o long term capatal growth,
The Investee Funds are managed by unrelated ssaet managers and apply vanous myvestment strutegics to acceemplish thear
respective investment objectives, The Invistee Funds finance ther operations by msuing limited panaership imlerests of
redeemable units which are putiable a1 the holder"s option and entithes the holder 1o o proportional stake in the respective
fund's nel macts. The Fund bolds limited parinership mierests or redeemable unils in each of its Invesiee Funds

The change in fanr value of cach Investee Fund s incladed m the Stitement of Comprehensive Income m “net realised
gains on financial assets at fair value theough profit of loss” or “net unrealised gains on financial ssets sl i value theoagh
profit or loss”

14 Forcign currency translation
fap Fuwrctional amd presentation currvency
The Fumd's subscraptions and redemptions of redeemable participating units are denomuenated m Unied States Dollay
(LS Daollar™ or “US357) The performance of the Fusd i measured and reportod o investors in LS Dollar, Management

vonsiders the LIS Dollar o the currency that maost fathfully represents (he cconomic ellects ol the underlyving tramsactions,
cvents and conditions. The financial satements ane presented in U5 Dollar, which s the Fund’s limctsnal and

presenialion curreney

by Tramsapctions und balances
Foreign currency transactions arc translated into the functional carrency using the exchangs rstes prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Forceign currency asscts and liabilities are translated mtoe the finctional currency using the exchange

rate prevashng ot the Satement of Fmancwl Fostion date. Foreign exchange goins and losses ansmg from oranslatson are
included in the Stalement of Comprebensive lncome
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
Sar the period from 16 September 202 (Dhate of commencement of operations) te 3§ December 2023

B Material accounting policics (continued)

24 Fercign currency translation (continmed)
() Fransactions and balanoes foomtimsed)

Foreign exchange gains and lsses relsting 1o cash and cash equvalents are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within ‘nel foreign exchange pains of losses on cash and cash equivalents’

Foreign exchange gains of losses nelating o the financial asscts and habilities camed an fair value theough profit or loss
are preseaied o the Statement of Comprehanive Inovme within ‘net realised gains on financinl assets at fan value
through profit or kess” or “net unrcalised gains on financial assets ot far vadue through profit or oss®

15  Financial instruments
251 Classification

In secordance with [FRS 9 Fmancial Instruments. fnoncial assels and labolties are clasalicd mio the following
InCRSUICILTIL CAlCROTies:

o Those o be measured subsequently ot far value through other comprehonsive moome (FVOCT), and fr valoe
through peofit or boss (FVTPL).
® Thone 1o be measured al smonised oost

Thee classification of the calegonies depends on the Fund s husaness modsd for managing leancial ssscts and abilines,
and the contractial cash Mow characteintics of the (inancial asscts and financizl labilities

The Fund s investment in finoncial assets and Dabilities is classified ot FYTPL. None of the Fund s Ninancial asets ond
liabsilities are held at FWOCT af period end,

Financlal axsets are measuwred af fair value theoagh profit ar loss (FVTPL) if:

o [ts contractual terms do not give ree o cash fows on specilied dates that are solely payments of prmcipal and imterest
(5PP1) on the prncpal amount outstandang; or

& [t 1s oot held within 8 busmess model whose objective 15 either o collect contractual cash Mlows, or to both collect
contraciual cash Deows and sell; or

* Al initial recogmition, i s imevosably designated as measured at FVTFL when doig so elimmates or significantly
reduces o measurement of recognition meonsistency that would otherwise anse from measuring assets of liabilitics
of recognisang the gaans and losses om them on different bases,

The Fund classifies its investment in Investee Funds a1 FVTPL

Financial assets measured al amortived covt

A lmancial asset ix measured a1 amortived coat il it is hebd withm a busmess model whose objective = to hold fmancial
assets m order 10 colloct contruciual cash Mows and its contractual terms give nse on specified dates to cash fows that
are solely payments of prneipal and ilerest on the priscipal smount oubtanding The Fusd inclodes m this category
cash and cash equivalents,

Financial liabilities measnred at amortised cost

This category includes all finamcial liabiliies, other than those mcasurcd at fair value through profit or loss. The Fomd
melades m this category accounts payable and aconed expenses,
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Sar the period from 16 September 202 (Dhate of commencement of operations) te 3§ December 2023

B Material accounting policics (continued)
L5 Financial instruments (continued)
151 Recognition, derecopnition and measurement

Regrular purchases and sales of investments are recogised on the trade-date, the date on which the Fund commits io
purchase of sell the mvestment. Financial assets al far valve theough profit or loss are imbally recognised ai fair value,
Trunsaction ords are expensed as incurred m the Ststement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial avsets are devecogmised when the sughts o reverve cash Nows from the lnancial sssets have expued o0 have
been transfemred and the Fund has transfemed substantially all the nisks and rewands of ownership

Subsequent 1o mitin] recognition, all financinl assets ol fair value through profit or loss are mensured af fir value. Gaims
and Josses ansang from changes in the far value of the *linancial assets o far value theoagh profil o loss” category are
presented in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income within the "net realised and unrealised gains in fair value on
financial assets at foer value through profit o lows” in the penod i which they anse.

283 Falr value measarement principles

IFRS 13 defines fair vahse as the price thai would be received o sell an asset or paid to oenster a labality n an orderly
irarsaciicn between market paticipants sl the measurement date umber cummeni markel conditions

Financial assets and financial lobiibes a1 fair value throwgh profin or loss are reconded m the Statement of Iinancial
Position sl fur value. All irmssction costs for such instniments are recogaised direetly in profit of loss of the Stalement
of Comprehensive Incoms;,

The fuir valoe of lnancial asscts and labibities traded m active markets are based on quoted market pnces at the close
of

tracing on the reporting date. The Fund wiilises the last iradal morket price for both fimancial assets and Ninancial
Habilitses where the st traded price falls within the bid-nsk spread. In circumstances where the last waded price is not
within the bad-ask spread. management will determine the point within (he hid-ak spread (that is most representative of
fair walue

The fnar value of financial asscty and habilities that are not traded in an active market 15 detemmined wang valuation
techmigues. The Fund uses o varely of methods and makes assumptions thal are based on market conditions ex isting af
cach reporting date. Valuation technigues used mebude the use of comparable recent ondinary transactions betwieen
market participants, reference 1o other instruments that are substannally the same and other vahaton techniques
commaonly wsed by market pasticipants making the maximum vse of market inpots and relyng as hitle as possible on
enbity-specilic mputs,

The Investment Manager may, al its discrction, permil any other method of valuation (o be used of they conseder that
such method of valuation beiter reflects far value and i in accordance with sound accounimg practice.

L84 Tramsfers between bevebs of the fair value hlerarchy

There were mo tramsfers betwoen the levels of the fuir value hicearchy duning the penad ended 31 December 2022

13
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes o the Financial Statements
Jar the peried from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Date of commencement af operations) to 3 December 2023

L Maiterial accounting policics (continued)
26 Expected cradit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost

Al gach reporting date, the Fund dall meavare the lows allowance on linancial assets measured @l amortised cosf ol
an aimounl eqil to the hfctime expectod credit losses ol the credit mink has increased sigmificantly since inatial
recogmilion 11, at the repoating date, the eredit risk has pol mereased agnilicantly sinee initial recognition, the Fand
shall measare ihe loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. Significant [inancial
diMicubies of the coupterparty, probabalisy that the counterpary wall enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and
default in payments are all considered indicators that amounts may be credit impaired. 15 the credin nsk imcrcases 1o
the pount et i s considerald to be credit impaned, mterest wwome will be calkculated based on the net canying
amount (after deduction of the less allowance). A sigmificant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any
contractual payemcont which s more than 30 days past due. Any contractual payment which s mode than M0 davs past
due is considered credil mpaired.

LT  Cash and cash equivalents

Canh and cndh equivalents include deposits beld o1 eall with banks and other <hort-term mvestments i an sciive marke
with orginal maturities of three months of kess

LE  Accrucd expenses

Accrued expenses are revognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated o1 amortised oost using the effective
inlerest method

L9  Redeemable interest in the Fund

The Fund 1ssues one class of redeemable units, which are redeemable at the umitholder's opton. Such shares ane
classified as equity. Redeemable imiis can be redecmed ai any Redemphon Day s the Trasice may defermine for cash
eiual to a proportionate share of the Fend's net asset value,

The redeemable onits are carried at amortsed cost which cormesponids 1o the redempiion amount that s pavable at the
Statemnent of Fuancmal Positron date of the umitholder exercises the nght o redeem shares. Redecmable units are issued
and redeemed st the unithalder’s option o pises based on he Pumd's met asset value per share o the e of e o
redemption. The Fund's pet assct value per share is calculated by divading the net asscts attributable to the unitholders
of each claws of redecmable units with the fotal number of oulstanding redecmable unils for each respective class In
accordance with the provissons of the Fund”s regulations, mvestment positions are valued based on the Last traded market
price for the purpose of determimng the net asset value per share for subscriptions and redemplions

Lin  Distribution income

Distribution income from lovestee Funds s recognised in profit of loss of the Stakement of Comprehensive Income on
the distnbution daie which is the date when the Fund's right o receive payment is established

LIl Tauvatbon

The Fund s not subject to any income, withholding or capital gams taxes in the Cayman [slands. The Fund is registered
as nn eXempled trust pursiant (o section 74 of the Trust Act (Revised) of the Coyman lslands. The Fund has opplicd for
a tax exemplion certilicate from the Financial Secretary of the Cayman Dslands, which, if granted, will provide that, for
a pertod of up fo 30 years from the date of the cncation of the Fund, no law that i thereafler enacled m the Cayman
[slands imposang any tax o duty fo be levied on income o on capital sssets, gains, or appreciation or any tax i the
matune of estate duty o inhentance tax will apply 1o any property comprised in the Fand, o 1o any meome ansing under
the Fund or (o the Trustee or 1o the unithobders in nespect of any such property of income.

14
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JEWEL BOX FUXD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes o the Financial Statements
Jar the peried from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Date of commencement af operations) to 3 December 2013

L Maiterial accounting policics (continued)
311 Tauation (continuad)

Unitholders will not be subject 1o any incoms, withbolding or copital gains laxes i the Cayman Ilands, with respect to
the units aiwmed by them and distibutions feceved on such wnils, Bof will they be subjedt o sy estate of mbentance
tanes in the Coyman Islands

1t is possibile that cenain dividends, mterest and other imcome reccived by the Fund from sounces within conam countnes
will be subject 10 withholding txes imposed by such countries. In addition, the Fund may also be sabject 1 capital
e taxes o odlier tanes in some of the countiies where il purchases aml sells securities of othierwise conducts busiiness,
It is impossible o predict in advance the mic of tax that will be paiid singe the amount of the assets of the Fund o be
wiviesled m vawous cotlies s unecibim,

LR Use of accounting estimates amd judgements

The preparubion of fnancal satements o conformity with IFRS requires the Trostee 1o make judgements, estimates.
and assamptions that alfect the applcaton of accomting policies and the reported amounts of assets, labilities, ineome
and expenses. Estimates and underlying sosumphions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions 1o accounting
estimates are rocognised in the penod im which (he estimiate s revised and in any fature penods affecied

Estimintes and assumpiions

Management makes ¢stimates ond asswmptions concermmng the future. The resulung accounting estimates will, by
defmition, seldom cqual the related sctual results. The estimates and essumplions that have s significant msk of causing
a matenal adjustment to the camymg amounts of ascts and habilitics are outhned below,

Favir value of investarents in other fumids

The farr value of mvestments in Investee Funds thin are not quoted i an scive market is determned by the net nsser
value issucd by the administrators of the Investee Funds, as the net assct valoe represents the price at which the Fand
can redeem s investments in such Iavestee Funds at the end of reportmg penod. The Investment Manager considers
the above valuaton approach as the best estimaie of the {air value of the Investoe Funds.

I the met assct value of the Investee Funds s not avimlable or the Investment Monager considers that such net assct value
is not reflective of the (i value, the Investnent Monager may exercise judgment and discretion b determine the e
vahse of the Investoe Funds. The Fund may determine the value of Investee Funds using its own models, which are
wsually based on valustion methods and technigques generally recognised as standard within the mdusiry.

Maodels use observable data, to the extent practicable. Hvwever, ancss such o credat sk (bath own and counterpanty),
volatilities and eomrelations require management to make estimates. Changes in assumplions ahout thise factors conld
aflfect the reported farr valoe of (mancial imstruments. The scnstivity to unobservable mputs i based on the expectation
of reasonable possible shifis in these mputs, iaking inio consideration historical volaility and cstimations of lture
ekt movements,

The determmation of what comstiles. “observable” requires segmificant judgement by the Fund. The Fund considers

ehscrvable data 1o be market data that is readily available, regularly distnbuted o updated, reliable and venfinble, not
proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are sctively involved in the relevant market.
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the Financlsl Statements
Sar the peried from 16 Neptember 2021 (Dhate of commencement of operations) to 3§ December 2023

4. Cash and cash eguivalents

I U8 Dollars 1013
Trading accounis 132,217
133,217

5. Financinl assets at fair value through profit or loss

I 12X Daotlars 2023
lavesics Funds 7293875
T2IHTS

6. Other payvahles

fu U8 Poliars 2023
Manasement fee payable 13,149
Organpation expenses payable BRI
Audat fee payable 44375
Legal fees payable 11,186

49,010

7. Net msscts attributable to unitholders

The Fund was extablished as an open-ended unit trust watl an initial sum of USS100 whch was recerved by the Trustee and
witll bbbl by the Trustee on behall of the Fund

The Trastee may o any time and from time to time, designate a class of shares with such rights, preferences and limitations
s the Trustee, in consuliation with (he Management Company and the Investment Manager, may determine. Redecmoble
umits may be iasued on o sabsciiption day (e the Dirst busimess day i each of January, Apnl, July and October in cach year
anl'or such viher days as the Managemen Company, in comulaton with the Trusiee and the lnovestment Mumager may
determme) m different classes by the Management Company on behall of the Trustee m accordance with the Trust Dieed,
which arc denominated m cither US Dollar or Japanese Yen (CIPY™). The offcring price for USD-class units: Class 1-USD,
Cloas R-USD ond Class P-USTY units 13 USS 10 per unit and JPY-class units: Class 1-JPY and Class R-JPY i JPY 1000 per
umit

The mmmum it mvestment per unithalder m Class | umits or Class B amits s LSS 100,000 (or currency cquavalent ) and
Fioe Ulaves P-UISEY wmts 15 855 0000 (M0 o suchy besser amound as the Trastee may generally or m any pamicular case determine,
provided that such lesser amount 1s consistent with the Fond bang regmstered under section 803 of the Mutual Funds Act
as iy be amended from time o time. The nrinimen additional subscription amount & fespect of Class 1 Units or Class R
Units i LSS 10000 (or cumrency oquovalenth and for Class PUSD unts is LSS ] 000, 600,

For the petiod from 16 Septemiber 2022 (Date of commencement of operations) 1o 3 December 2023, only Class P-LIS[
shares have been sucd.

s
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Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Sar the peried from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Dhate of commencement af operations) fe 3§ December 2023

7. Net asacts attributable to unithelders (continued)

The analysr of movements in the number of redeemable units and nel ascts attributable 1 unitholders dunng the
period is as follows:

Far the period from

16 September 2022

iDate of commencement

of operations) o

fn mnins 31 December 2023
Isswed and fally paid number of shares

Halance ot begimming of the perod :

lssuance of redecmable units T0W0, 00

Redemption of sedeemable unihs { TN (WM

Balance at the end of the peiod -

For the period from

16 September 2022

iDate of commencement

of operations) o

I 1S Dollars 31 Decomber 2023

Tssuied and fally paid shares

Halance st beginmng of the perind -

Isuance of redecmable units 7 0000, Ok

Redempiwon of redecmable wiuis {7.358,082)

Increase in net macts pttribotable 1o unitolders 58,082

Halance at the end of the penod -

Redeemable units may be redeemed on the redemption date (e, the first business dov i gach of January, Apnl, July
and October in cach year andior such other days as the Trustce may determine) il the net asset value per share apon
receving 95 days” nodice prior to valuntion date wnitten natice from a unitholder, except for Class P-UST units, which
i stibject to a 12 maith lock-up penod from e date af s

Il sedampison reguests for the redempiion of uniis in aggregaie of more thim 25% of the nei ssaei value of the Fund, the
Management Company may reduce those redemplion regquests ratcably and pro rata amongs! all unitholders secking o
redecm units on the redempiion date and (o carry out oaly sufficent redemptions which, m aggregate, amount 1o the
redemption threshold, Hedemption raquests which are not satisfred in full wall be carmiod foraard 1o the next redemplion
idate but will not have any prionty over other redemption roquests.
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Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Sar the period from 16 September 202 (Dhate of commencement of operations) te 3§ December 2023

A, Related parties

Parties are considered to be reloted if one party has the ability 1o control the other party or exercise signilican influence
over tse other party in making linancial or eperational deciions.

Relationships

Investment Mannger: TORANOTEC Asset Management Lid,
Managemen! Company: Fmerging Asset Management Lid
rustes Apex Fund Services (Covmam) Lid

Related party transactions and balamces
Management foe

The Fund has sppointed TORARNOTEC Asset Management Lid. as the lnvesiment Manager 1o provide mvesiment
manageaenl and sdvisory services 1o the Fund, Pursuant o the svestiwen) management sgreement, the Tovestment
Manager will neceive o muansgement foe oqual o one quarier of 10% per quaster of the net assct value of Class |
Umits, one quarter of 1.1% per quarter of the net assel value of Class R Units and one quarter of 0. 7% per quanier of
the net asset value of Class P-USD Units. The management fee will be payeble quanicrly in artcars

Management foes moumed for the penod amounted o USS63.X10 and the balance pavable ot 31 Docember 1023
amounted o LSS 13145

Traisice fow

The Trustee s entitled to recerve, ot of the issets of the Fund, o foe equal o the greater of (1) 002% of the Net Asset
Vahse per annum and (i) US3 15,000 per annum. For the period from 16 September 2022 (Date of commencemient of
operations) o 3 December 2023, Trustee foes were incurred by the lnvestment Manager on behall of the Fond

Munagoment Company fov

Ihe Management Company is eobitled 1o peceve, oul of the asscts of the Fund, a fee of UISSY5,000 pey annum. For
the penod from 1h Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of operationa) o 31 December 2023, Managenicnt
Company fees were meurmed by the Investment Manager on behall of the Fund,

9. Finuncial risk management

Effective risk managerent i amtegial o the Fund ‘s objective of comsstently addmg value to unitholders. The locus
of nsk munagement is on ieatifying, ssscssing, managng, and monitonng sk

The Fund®s activities expose il to 8 vanely of financial risks; market sk (including price nsk, currency risk and
mterest rde risk). crodit nsk- and biguidity nsk.

2.1 Market risk
Market risk i the nisk thai changes in the market pnices will aflect the Fund's income or the value of s holdimgs of

Timancial imstruments. The objective of market sk managemenl is 1o manage and control morket risk exposures within
acceptable parnmeters, while optimising the retum.

1%
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Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Jar the peried from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Date of commencement af operations) to 3 December 2023

1 Financial risk management (continued)
2.1 Market risk (continucd)
2011 Price risk

Prce nsk s the nsk that the value of a linancial mstrument Moctiates as o resul of changes in markel prices of
mstruments beld whether caused by factors specilic to the anderhving mvestments of the Funal, its issuer or all factors
affiecting all mstruments traded in the market,

The Fuml is exposed o price risk on myvesineents beld i Invesioe Fumds which presents @ nisk of boss of capital. The
Investment Monsger modctes this risk through diversification and selection of mvestments by investing i
underlying fonds which are histed or otherwise intended 1o be realised

The Fund's investment in Investee Funds as disclosed in Node § of these fmancial statements nre subject 1o price nisk.

Assurming thal all siber vasinbles remain constunt, a reasonahly possible weakening in the individual market prices of
1% ot 3 December 2003, would resull i 8 decrense m the net asscts atinbutable 1o umnholders of UTSS729 38K,
which represents 98% of the Fund's nel assets belore redempbon.

A strengthening of individual market prices woukd have an equal bl opposite effect

ALY December 2023, the exposune to imvestments in Investee Funds at far value greater than 10% of the net assets
belore redernption by strategy emploved and exposure to various geographical regions s disclosed in the following

tabsle.
e of nel assets
Coeographical befare
Jn S Dollars Strategy region Fair value redemplion
31 December 2023
Anxa Enhanced Income Fumd Real estale Ulpated States
Oflihore Feades delbst fund of Amenca 2 200,625 I0.03%
CiSA Coral Portfolio S.CA SICAV-
SIF - Coral Student Porfolis Funad of funds s embaourg 3 325,049 J02a%
Montreux [lealtheare Fund 1id Prvate equity fund  United Kingdom 1,001,329 13.75%
Prism Income Fund Private debt furd LI PTTHIITT 1LE4TET2 25.11%
1._:!;!.!15 13

9.1.2  Corrency risk

Currency nisk, as defined in IFRS 7, arises as the value of future transsetions, recognised monctary assets and monctary
lishilitics denominated in other cumrencics Nuctuate due 1o changes in foreign exchange res. [FRS 7 considers the
foreign exchange exposure relating o non-moenctiry assets and labilities o be a component of market prce nsk and
mt foreign cusrency risk However, the lnvestment Manger monitors the exposure on all facign conency
denommated asscts and habihiies

When the lnvestment Manager Formilates a view on U future direction of foreign exchange rates and the potential
mpact on the Fund, the Investment Manager factors that into thew mvestment portfolio allocation decisions. While
the Fund has direct exposure b Forcign exchange rale changes on the price of non-US Dollar denominated securities,
it may also be indmectly affected by the impact of forcign exchange rate changes on the camings of certain companics
m whech the Fund mvests, even of those companies’ seconiies ane denomenated in US55 The Investment Manager
regularly monitors the Fund s monctany and non-monctany forcign exchange exposure

A3 December 2023, the Fund beld cash and cash equivalenis amouniing 1o LISNS34] denomimated in a currency
other than the 1% Dollar.

Assanginig Uisl all oller vanables iciimnn constant, a 5% weakenmig of e 'S Dollad sgainst foicngn cuiicicies al the
reporting date, would have decreased net assets atinbutable 1o unitholders by USS17,
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9% Financial risk management (continued)
2.1 Market risk (continued)
2.1 lInterest rate risk

Inieresi rate nsk s ihe nsk that ke fair valoe or futvre cash flows of a linancial instrimeni wall fuctuste as a resuli of
changes in imlerest rdes.

N sensabavidy of the Fund™s profit or hiss for the period hias boen presenied as ihe Fund did ot hold any imvesineenis
that are affected by changes in intcrest mates.

Ihe Fund ax subyected to hmated exposuee lo far valie cash Mow and micrest fute rk die 1o Musctuatpons in prevarng
levels of market imderest mies

The Fund™s cash snd cash equivalents consists of interest-bearing bank deposits. As these deposits are invested in
short-term market micrest rates accounts, the Investment Manager conssders the movement m micrest rates will nod
have ssgmifeant cash ow impact on ihe net asscts attnbutable to wmitholders at 31 December 2023 and accondmgly,
have not prescwtod o sensiivity analysis

92 Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk is the msk that the Fund may not be able to gencrate suflicient cash resourees (o seitle its obligations in
Tull as they fall duc or can oaly do o0 on ferms that are matenally dissdvantageous. The Fand i exposed to quarterly
cash redempiions of redecmable units

The Fund may penodically invest in unlisied myvesiee funds that are nol traded in an active market, As a resuli, the
Fund may not be able to quickly lguidate its mvestments in these instruments al an amount ¢lose 1o ther [ir value to
mect its hguidity requirements or be able to respond 1o specilic events such as deterionation in the coeditwarthiness of
any particular isaucr

The Fund's approach to managimng Dguidity 1 10 ensure, as far as possibile, that ot will always have sulficient hoguadity
to meet its labilitses when due, under both normal and stressod comditions, without imcurmng unacceptable losses o
msking damage to the Fund's reputation Liquadity sk s monnored by the Investment Monager in accordance with
policies and procedures in place. The Fund’s redemption policy stipulates thal unitholders mus provide 95 days
nietice prios 1o valuation date relevant 1o the redempton date

Ihe follvwing table discloses the relevan! matunity groupangs based on the remomang period. at the Statement of
Financial Positwn date to the contractual matanity datc

Less than T davs (o 1om 12 Muaore than

Lo 125 Dolfars 7 davs 1 insail it s 12 imunths  Suspeaded
31 December 2023
Contractual cash Inflows
Fmancial assets at fair valoe through
profit or boss - - 6,252 546 PO 1 vl L
Cash and cash equivalents 13217 - . . .
Contractoal cash outflows
Redempaion payable - - [T35R,042) - -
Other payables - - {65.010) - .

133,217 = (1.144.544) - L0119

0
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Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Jor the peried from 16 September 2022 (Date of commencemeni af operations) to 2f December 2023

92 Financial risk management (continued)
9.2 Liguidity risk (eontinued)

*This relates to Montreux ealthcare Fund Lud “Montreux ™), Montreux holds an mvestment i a private healthcare
provader, the Active Cate Gioup (“ACGT), through its underlving master fund ("Master Fond ™) AUG s the sole
underlymg invesiment of Monireux

The Master Fund provided notification to myvestors dated 3 October 2022, that ACG s not in o position o sapport its
current bevel of myvestment and @ process was initiated o dispose of ACG. The process to dispose ACG commenced
in October 2022, The duecton of the Master Fusd concluded that, while the sale is bemg negotiated, they will mol be
in & position o sceurately detenmine the fur value of ACG for the purpeses of scouratcly processing subscnptions o
tedemnptions and have accondngly resolved that the Master Fund should cnter mio a close perid wath cflect from 3
October 2022 1o allow the sale of ACG 1o be completed

According to the notice issued by Montreux 1o investors doted 1 September 2023, following the closure of the Master
Furd, the directors of Mostreux concluded that Montreux should enter mio a clome period which commenced on 11
July 2023 o profect myvestor capatal 1he elosed penod will continue until the date on which the sale of the AUG 1=
either completed of lernunated and the Master Fund reepens. The notice further staled that during the closed period,
the NAV of Montreus will fiol be caleulatad. no new participating shafes will be available for subsenption amd mo
redemption requests will be processed.

2.3 Credit risk

Credit nisk is the risk that the counterparty to a linancial mstrument will cause a financial loss for the Fand by failing
o discharge an oblgaton. The Fund n exposed 1o the rak of ciodit-related losses that can occur as a resuli of a
counterparty or issuer being unable or wmwilling to honour its contraciual eblhgations on cash and cosh equivalents,
The Fund’s policy éver credit nsk 1% 1o minimne its credit exposinre 1o counterpantics with perceived higher mk of
defiult by dealing only with counterparties mecting specific credit standards. Credit ik 15 monstored by the
Investment Manager m accordance with policics and procedures in place

The Fund®s achivitics may give nse to mik ai the fume of scitbemeni of iransactions which cxposes il b ihe mak of loss
due 1o the ilare of se cntity wo hosour its obligations w deéliver cash. securitics o other assets as contractually agreed.
For the majority of rapsactions ihe Fund mitigates this nisk by conducting settlements through a broker therelore the
visk of defult b considered minumal

For risk management purposes, the Fund considers and consolidanes all elements of eredin nisk exposute (such as
mdividual default sk, country and sector k). The Fund's maximum credit nsk exposure af the reporting date s
represented by the respective carrying amounts of the relevant financial asscts in the Statement of Financial Position.
Crodan risk desclosores are sepmented o two sections based on whether the undetlying fimancial mstrament is subject
o [FRS 9% mmpatmment dise losures of not

Fingnetal assety subject fo IFRS 9's pnpatrment rogarremients

The Fund’s financial sssets subject (o the expected credit loss model within IFRS 9 are cash and ¢ equivalents. As
at 31 December 2023, no loss allowance has been providod and there wire po sagnificant concentrations of credil nsk
by vl e or group of seers sor were any linancinl ssseis cared ol amosised cosi past Jue o mipairad
and no amounts have been written off,
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Notes 10 the Financlal Statements
Jar the peried from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Date of commencement af operations) to 3 December 2023

1 Financial risk management (continued)

2.3 Credit risk (continued)

Fmancial assets pot subgect to IFRN 9’5 impoirment regniremenis

At 31 December 2023, the Fund is exposed to credit risk on investments i Investee Funds and are not subject w IFRS
W mmpairment requirements as they are measured st FY TP The comymg value of these socts, under [FRS 9
represents the Fand's maximaum exposare (o coodil risk on financial instrements not subject to the IFRS 9°s inpaiment
requirements al the reporting date. Hlence, no separale maximum exposage to credit ek disclosure s provided for
these instiurments.

The maximum credii exposure and countenparty crodit ratmgs, as rated by Sandard & Poor’s are as follows.

1013
S&P Rating Lss

3 December 2013
Cash and eadh equivalents A-l 13327

No credst ratmgs were avanlable for investment in Investee Funds, hivwever the Investment Manager is of the opimion
that these Investes Funds have an scceptable eredit quality

94 Capltal ik management

The capual of the Fund s representod by the net assets atimbutable 1o onitholders of redeemable units and shown in
the Sustement of Finanwial Possion, The Funds obgective when managig capatal s to salcpuand the Fond's ability o
continue as & gomg concem i order o provide retums for umtholders, provide benefits for other stakeholders and
iaintiin & strong capital base 1o support the development of the investment sctivilies of the Fand

In order to maintmn the capital structure, the Fund's policy is to perform the following:

*  Maomitor the level of quarterly subseriptions and redemplions relative 1o (he assets i expects 1o be abbe o lquidate
within the same timie penod,

&  Redeem and make new shaies 1o accordance with the oflenmg documents of the Fund, which mchude the abihty
o restniet nedempiions and require cenain mimimum holdings and subscriptions

Ihe Trustee and Investment Manager monmor capital on the basis of the value of met assets attnbuatable 1o umitholders.

2.5 Fair value estimation

Fair value mieasurement

The faur value of finangml asscts and labiliies traded m sctive markets are based on quoted market proices uf the close
of trmdug on U perod end date The Fund utilises the ast traded maket pnee o both lnsseial avets and Gaancial
lnabilities

An active market s a marked in which transactions lor the asset or lability take place with sulTicient frequency and
vilwne te provide pricing imfommation on an ongeing basis. lovestments with teadily available sctive quoted prices
of Foo whach fanr value can be meaired with aactively quoted prnioes generally will havie a fogher degree of market
prce obsarvability and a lesser degree of judgement used in measunng Cir value

e fair valse of financial seacts and labilities that are nol traded in an active market & determined by using valuation
techmques. For mstruments for which there s ne active market, the Fund may use intermally developod medels, which
are wsually baded on valuation methods and technigues generally recopmised as standard within the mdustry

I'he output of 0 model s always an estimate of approximation of 3 valee that cannol be determined with cortainty, and
valuataod fecharques emploved may ol Rully feflect all factods relevanl to the posationd the Fund holds Valaations
are therelore adjusted. where sppropnate. o allow for additionsl factors including model nsk, housdiny nisk and

eounlerpasty sk,

n
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92, Financial risk management (continued)

2.5 Fair value extimation (continucd)
Fair valwe meavirensent foontinmed)

IFRS 13 requires cahanced disclosires aboul mvestments il are mcasiied and repoited at G value. IFRS 13
establishes n hictmrchical dischosare framework which priontises and ranks the level of market price obacrvability used
n measuring imvestments o fair value. Market price observability is unpacted by several factors, meluding the type of
mvestment and the charactenistics specific to the investment

Valuaiion of iwesimenis m lnvesioe Funds

The Fund’s investments i Investee Punds are subject 1o the terms and conditions of the respective Investee Fund’s
offenng docomantation. The investments in Investee Funds ane valued based on the latest available redemption price
of such umis for cach lnvestee Fund, ax determined by the Investee Funds’ admnistrators. The Fund reviews the
dietaiks of the repotted information obtained from the Investoe Funds and considers:

e the hquadity of the Investes Fund or s underlying mvestmenis,

o the value date of the net asset valug (NAV) provided.

Aoy restrichons on redemplions, and

o the hous of accounting and, in matances where the basis of accountmy s other than faar value, Far valuation
mformation provided by the Investes Fund's advisors.

If mecessary, the Fund makes adjusiments o the KAV of vanious Invesice Funds 1o abtam ibe best estumade of Gy
value {Mher net changes n fair value on fimancal asses and financial labiitees st for valoe theough prolid or loss m
the Statement of Comprehensive Income include the change m fair value of cach lsvestce Fund

The [aw value of mvestments in lovesioe Funds, clissificd as linancial assels o G value theough profit or loss, for
which ihere is not an available quoted price s basad on the cunent net asset value or nel isset valuoe per share o
reponted by thear respective admunistratons of such fimds,

As ol 3] Decomber 2023, 1000 of financial aoscts ol fair value through profit or less comprise mvestments in Investos
Funds that hove been fair vabued in sccordance with the polwics set out above. The shares of the nvestee Funds are
not publicly traded; redemption can only be made by the Fund on the redemption dates and subject 1o the requined
notice penods specified m the offarmg documents of cach of the Investee Funis. The nghis of the Fund to reguest
redemplion of its investments m Investee Funds may vary i frequency for redemptions. As a resull, the carrymg
values of the Investee Fundds may mot be indicative of the vales ultimately realised on redemption. In sddition, the
Fund may he materially affected by the actions of other mvestors who have invested in the lavestes Funds in which
the Fund kas mvested.

The Investoe Funds sie oo tmded on an active matket and then fan value v detenmined using valuation tochnigues.
Ihe valise is primanily based on the lalest avanlable net axset vahie of the Investee Funid as reported by the sdministrstorn
ofsuch Investee Fund.

IFRS 13 requires the Fund o classaly far value measurements usang o (nar valse hicrarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements, The fadr value hicrarchy has the follewing levels:

o Lovel | mputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities that the entity can
aceeis ot the measurement Jate,

o Level 2 inputs are mputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that sre obseivable for the asset or
tabihity, exther darectly or indirecily; and
*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable mputs for the asset or habalay

n
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a, Financial risk management (continued)

2.5 Fair valug estimation (continued)
Fair value measurement foontimued)

e bevel uni the Ganr value nerarchy swathin which the far value measurement s categorsed i s enlmety is determuned
o the basis of the bowest bevel anpat that i ssgmaficant B0 the Gar value measurement in s entirety. For this pearpise,
the signeficance of an gl i3 assessed agamst the far value mexsarement in s entirety. 11 a far valoe measurement
wses observable inputs that require significant sdjustment based on unobscrvable mputs, that measarement is a [evel
¥ measuremsnt. Assessing the significance of a particular mpat 1o the fair value measurement in its entirety roquires
judpement, consadenng Factons specilic to the soset on lalaliy.

The determmation of what constitutes *ohservable” requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Pund considers
observable data 1o be that market datn that is readily avadable, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and vernifiable,
ol proprctary, supporied by market transachions, and provided by independent sources that ane actively mvolved m

the relevanl mmaket.

The following table analyses, wathun the far value hicrarchy the Fund's financial assets messured a1 fasr value st 31

December 2023

L LN Dwilfars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal

31 December 2023

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investee Funds . . T.293.R75 1293375
. = T.290.875 7.19

The Investee Funds are not quoted in sctive markets and were fair valued using the net asset value of the Investee Fund,
as seported by the respective Investee Fand's sdmimastrator. For these Dnvestee Punds, management believes the Fund
could have redecmed its investment sl the net asset value per diare al the Statement of Financial Position date

Ihe mvestiment ¢lisafiod within Level 3 8 comprised of @ single Investe Fund, which was B valied with reference
1y the net asset value ax reporied by (he Investee Fund s administrator

The Investment Monager regularly reviews Level 3 valustions and considers the mpproprtencess of the valuntion
miodel imputs, as well as the valuabon neault seing vanous valustion methods and technigues generally recognined as
standard within the industry. In sclecting the most appropriste valustion model the Investment Monager performs back
testing and consders which model’s resulis have histoncally aligned most elisely to actual markel transaciions

Kemuitivity analvais o significant chamges in mnobservable inputs within Level 3 hierarely

Ihe sagmificant unohservahle inputs used m the (e valoe measurement categonsad withm Level 3 of the Gur valoe
hicrarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 3 December 2023 is shown below

Fair valuc ai Unobervahle Reaswunabile Change in
31 December 2023 input possilile shifi valuation
Valuation +la e
_Deseription technique {absolute value)
Investee Funds USST 293875  Netasetvaloe  Notopphcable  Not applicable Mot applicabile
M
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements
JSar the period from [6 September 2032 (Dhate of commencement of operations) te 3§ December 2023

a, Financial risk management (continued)
9.5 Fair value estimation (continuecd)

Varhwarion rechmiqie

The Fund's Investment Manager considers (he valuation techniques and inputs used n valuing this Invesee Fund, 1o
ensute il is reasonable and approprate and therefore the net asset valee of this Investee Fund may be used as an ingpat
min measuring s [ar valee. |ransochions i the shares of such o fund do not occur on a regular basis. In measuring
this fair vahue, the net wset value of the Investee Fund is adjisted, as necessary, to refllect restictions on redemplions,
lock up penod, future commatments and other specific factors of the Invesice Fund and iis Investment Manager

Valwarion process

The Trustee has reviewed the latest valuations based on their knowledge of the mvestment marker. The valuation
assevnenl was based on public mionmation and rellects uxhtiug facts and condhibons os of 1] December 2023, The
valuation asscsament is also subject to quality review procedures performed by the Investment Manager. The
Investment Monager verifies the major nputs apphed in the latest valuation by agrecing the mfvemation m the
valuation compatniion o relevant documents and morket infonmation

Ihe following table presents the reconciliaton of all movements m the far valoe of lovel 1 imstraments as ot 3]

December 2023

In LN Lotlars 101}
Opening balance -
Purchase of Iovestee Funds GX14.213
Net unrealised goims on linenecial assets ol (i valoe through

prodil or ks 479,662
Closing balance 7,293,878

Change i nnrealised gaims or losses for Level 3 assets held
al vear end and inclisded in pel unrealised gaims on financial
assets i T value through profin or loss AT 662

There were no transfers between the levels dunmg the pened from 16 Seplember 2022 (Date of commencement of
operationd) 1o 3] December 2023

Pl
L
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JEWEL BOX FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
Jar the peried from 16 Sepiember 2022 (Date of commencement af operations) to 3§ December 2013

0. Events after reporting date

The mvestor of the Fund hod submitted o full redemption request in September 2023 and the payment was made n
March 2024, Inviestinents in Anxa Enhanced Income Fund Offshore Feeder, (GSA Coral Portfolie 5.CA SICAV-XIF
Corml Student Portfolio and Prism Income Fund were redecmed and the cash proceeds of USS6,333,247 were wired fo
the imvestor aiud any resadual cash will be translermed opon the haaliaton of the audit Investment holding m Moatieix
Healtheare Fund i (“Montreux ™) was distniboted inekind 10 the Fund s investor alier the reporting date ol o value of
USS1L011 33

Subsgqquent 1 the period end, the Fund s still open for the new imvestors (o invest. However, as of the date of approval
of e financul statements, there was no vestor invested into the Fund.

The Tnvestment Manager comamsts bo cover all of o portiod of the Fuad s operating costs, as may be necciaany, Lo cnsufe
the continuity of the Fund for the 2024 sudit penod ending December 2024

Mo other matenial events have occurrod between the reporting date and the date of approval of the financial
statemients

1. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authonsed For issue by the Trustee on 29 Angust 2024
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2025
165,690.58 24,774,056
11,124.26 1,663,299
154,566.32 23,110,756
4,000
12,606
975.7167

10.1955 1,524
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2025
140 462,000 6,908
140
1981
1981
1981
50 2
1
1981

1981 2008 11
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
9 600 90 600 90
600 9 600 90
11 817,121 122,176 587,043 87,775
16 90,770 13,572 28,523 4,265
907,891 135,748 615,566 92,039
908,491 135,838 616,166 92,129
12 209,625 31,343 126,692 18,943
13 198,009 29,606 65,943 9,860
407,634 60,949 192,635 28,803
500,857 74,888 423,531 63,326
14 140 21 140 21
15 461,860 69,057 461,860 69,057
38,857 5,810 (38,469) (5.752)
500,857 74,888 423,531 63,326
2024 6 28
2023 12 31

2023 2022
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1,338,646 200,154 1,105,430 165,284

247,929 37,070 262,102 39,189

1,586,575 237,225 1,367,532 204,473

377,056 56,377 375,409 56,131

632,193 94,525 604,549 90,392

1,009,249 150,903 979,958 146,523

/ 577,326 86,322 387,574 57,950

2023 12 31

2022 1 1 140 21 361,860 54,105 (26,043) (3,894) 335,957 50,232
/

- - - - 387,574 57,950 387,574 57,950

10 - - - - (400,000) (59,808) (400,000) (59,808)

100,000 14,952 100,000 14,952

2023 1 1 140 21 461,860 69,057 (38,469) (5,752) 423,531 63,326
/

- - - - 577,326 86,322 577,326 86,322

10 - - - - (500,000) (74,760) (500,000) (74,760)

2023 12 31 140 21 461,860 69,057 38,857 5,810 500,857 74,888

2023 12 31
2023 2022

577,326 86,322 387,574 57,950

(230,078) (34,401) (61,530) (9,200)

82,933 12,400 53,260 7,963

132,066 19,747 21,351 3,192
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562,247 84,067 400,655 59,906
(500,000) (74,760) (400,000) (59,808)
(500,000) (74,760) (400,000) (59,808)
62,247 9,307 655 98
28,523 4,265 27,868 4,167
16 90,770 13,572 28,523 4,265
2023 12 31
2008 11 3 1981
- 2
- @
- ©))
- 2024
31
- 2023 3 1

(Jewel Box Fund)

(Global Alternative Strategy Fund)
2023 12 31 2024 3
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a)
FVTPL
ECLs

ECLs
b)
Q)
(i)

ECLs —
IFRS 9

12 ECLs 12 ECLs
ECLs ECLs

12 ECLs ECLs
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International Accounting Standards Board

IAS 1 IFRS 2

1AS

IFRS 1AS

IAS 8

IAS

4b. IFRS

IFRS
2024 1 1

IAS 1
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12
2024 1 1
IASB IAS 1 2022 2020
2022

2023 2022
1,338,646 1,105,430

2023 2022
200,796 240,557
47,133 20,920
- 625
247,929 262,102

2023 2022
12,000 12,000
8,826 8,932
143,040 117,459
39,231 7,499
152,466 169,752
52,968 -
94,127 20,000
22,818 18,979
1,937 936
- 49,350
23,814 23,609
/ 78,762 80,029
(175) 1,087
4,800 4,500
6,000

/ (2,441) 84,417
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632,193 604,549

2023 2022

377,056 375,409

500
100

600

)
100
100
100

100

100
100

50 2022 40

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

564,996 380,095
100,000 100,000
136,665 103,817
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16.

2022 12 31

2023 12 31

2017 8 29

2022

2023 12 31

2022 12 31

111,900

100,000
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15,460 3,131
817,121 587,043
17
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
209,625 126,692
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
600 600
197,409 65,343
198,009 65,943
17
2023 2022
140 140
1 140
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
461,860 461,860

(GC Agile Intermediate Holdings Limited)

349,960

2022 111,900
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19.

(GC Agile Intermediate Holdings Limited)

Genstar GP
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2022 12 31

2023 12

31
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
90,770 28,523
2023 1 1 - 2022 1 1 -
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,338,646 1,105,430
247,929 262,102
423,184 419,704
173,895 173,456
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20.

21.

ECL
16
2003
Bermuda Monetary Authority
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IFRS

A 2023 A

Investment Business Act 2003
Class B Registered Person

B
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Docuign Ersesbope 10 DEOMMDE-O0EN-44 1 Sh01-DESBTFCTHINC

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.
Statement of financial position

31 December 2023
Nohes 3 Dec 31 Dec
2023 2002
uspD usD
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
MNon-current assels
Investments in subsidiarios 9 600 800
600 800
Current assols
Trade and ciher recelables 1 LAF A3 587,043
Cash and cash equivalents 16 90,770 28,523
§07.891 615,566
Total asssts 08,401 B16,1606
Current liabilities
Trade and othar payabios 12 209,625 126,562
Otner financinl Eabilties 13 198,009 65,043
Total lisbilities 407,624 102 538
Met assels 500,857 423,551
EQUITY
Share capilal 14 140 140
Qther oquiy 15 481,860 461,860
Retainad mﬂm:ﬂmmﬂnﬂ losses) 38,857 (38 469)
Total equity 500,857 423,50
_ _

These Minancial statements were approved by the board of directors, authorised for issuc
on 28 June 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

i

Director

The noles o ihe fnancial stalemenis form an infegral part of these financial steterneénts
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DocuBign Ervvbops 1D DEOMALEDEE B4 25 SAL-BESR TF CTA0C

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Year ended 31 December 2023

033 2002
Notes usD usD
R 5 1,138 646 1,105,430
Other operaling income [ 247,920 262,102
1,586,575 1,367 512
Operating expenses

Elaff costs 8 377,056 ATEADD
Olner operaling expenses 7 632,193 604 549
Tolal exponses 1,009,240 676,958

Profittolsl comprehensive
incomedloss for the year 577,326 387,574
—_ —_

The notes to the finarcial statements form an integral par of these financial stalements.
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DocuBiges Ervvabopes 1D DEOMALEDEE B4 28 SALS-DESR TF C TAS0E

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 Decamber 2023

Retained
Earnings/
Share Other Acumulated
capital equity losses Total
usD usp uso usn
Balance at 1 January 2022 140 361,660 {26,043) 335,957
Profittelal comprohansive
Incosme fof he ya . - 387 574 387,574
Payment of dividend (note 10) - - (400,000) {500.000)
Addition 1o other equity 100,000 : 100,000
Balance at 1 January 2023 140 461,860 (38 4E5) 423,51
Proftiotal comprehansivi
Income for the year - - 577,326 5T71.326
Paymaent of dividend (nota 10) . - (500, 000) (500.000)
Balance at 31 December 2023 140 461,860 38,857 500,857

The notes to the fnancial statements form an intogral part of these financiad statemeonts.
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DociBiges Ervvabops 1D DEOMALEIEE B4 25 SALJ-BESR TF C TAI0C

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2023

033 2032
usD usp
Cash flows from operating activitios
Total comprehensive incoma for the year 577,326 387,574
Movaman! i lrade ard other recaivablas {230,078) {81.530)
Movement in rade ard other payablos 82.933 53,260
Movemant in other financia! abilithes 132,066 21,35
Nel cash om aperatng acfintos 562,247 400 655
Cash flows used in financing activitios
Dividand payments to ordinary shareholdars (500,000) (400.000)
Net cash usad in financing activiliss {500,000) {400.000)
MNet movement in cash and cash
equivalents 62,247 655
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year 28,523 27,868
Cesh and cash equivalents at the
end of the year (note 16) 90,770 28,523

Thir polés [ the fnancial slatemants form &n inlegral part of thess finansial stslements.
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DocuBiges Ervvabops 1D DIEOMALEIEE Bdd 28 SA03-BESR TF CTAI0E

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

1. General information

Emerging Acset Management Lid. {the "Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 November
200%, The Company was incorporated under the Bermudian Companies Act 1981,

The Company provides fund mansgoment services w phatforms to allow emeonging fumsd managers
1o get started in the industry in a low-cost and low-nsk way.

As ot the reporting date, the Company acted as investment manager for the following platforms
and Fund:

- Emerging Manager Platform Linited

« Emerging Muoaager Platform 2 Lanited

- Cayman Emerging Manager Platform SPC

- Cayman Emerging Manager Platform (2) SPC

- Cayman Emerging Manager Platform (33 SPC

- Lowrence Park Credit Strategies Master Fund LLC (ceased operations 31 January 2024)
- Fulminis Emerging Manager Platform SPC icommenced operations (0 March 2023)

The Company’s wholly owned subsidinry, EAM (USA) Lid | acts a5 Adminkarative Manager for
the following platfonm;

- Emerging Musager Platform LLC

In sddition, the Company provides Management Company services 1o Jewel Box Fund, an
excmpted trust governed by the laws of the Cayman Islands and to Global Altermative Strategy
Funid, an exemplod trust governed by the lows of the Cayvman Islands, Jewel Box Fund suspended
operations 31 December 2023 and will re-open in the thind quarter of 2024, Global Allernative
Strategy Fund kas not yet commenced operations.

2. Basis of preparation

These non-statutory financial stalements represent the scparate non-statulory financial statements
for the Company. The directors of the Company have ¢lected not to draw up consolidated financial
staternents for the year ended 31 December 2023 a5 required by Internationa) Financial Reporting
Standard 10 - Consolfdated Financial Statements for its group as the group’s subsidianes. did not
operale during the vear under review and accordingly the group's financial results are not
materally diflerent from those of the Company,

In all respocts, these separate nen-siafutony financial smicments have been prepared in accordance
with Internationnl Financial Repering Standands and on a historical cost basis. The matenal
socounting policy information adopted are sct out below.
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DocuBiges Ervvabops 1D DIEOMALEIEE Bdd 28 SA03-BESR TF CTAI0E

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

. Hasiy of preparation (continned)

Use of extimates and judgements

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with [FRS: requires management to make
judgemnients, estimates and assumplions (hat afTect the application of accounting policses und the
reportcd amounts of asscts, labilitics, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
cstimates.

Estimates and underlving assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basic. Revisions 1o
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the cstimates are revised and in any
future periods sffected.

In the apinion of the directors, the sccounting estimates and judgements made in the course of
prepanng these financial statements are not difficul! 1o reach, subjective or complex 1o a degree
which woulld warrant their deschiplion as significant and critical in terms of the requirements of
IAS 1 (revised).

3 Material accounting policy infarmation
Tovextments in subsidioory

A subsadiary 15 an cohity that is controlied by the Company, The Company controls an investee
when the Company s exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the
imvestee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investoe.

Investment in sabsidiary is sccounted for on the basis of the direct equity interes! and is siated at
cont less any accumulated imparment bossex. Dividends from the investmcnt arc recogmsod in
profit or losa,

(hher financial imsrumen

Financial asscts and financial [abilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.  Financial misets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised o their Car value plus directly attributable trnsaction costs for all fmancial assets or
financial liabilitics not classified ot fair vahee through profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial labalitics are offsct and the net amvount presented in the satement
of financial position when the Company has a legally enforceable nght to sef ofl the recognised
amounts and intends erither o seitlc on a net basis or o realise the asset and settle the lability
stmulinncously.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asscts expire of when the catity transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. This occurs when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires,

An equity mstrument 1% any contract that evidences a resadual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its Liebilites. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceads received, net
of direct issue conts,
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

3 Matcrial accounting policy information (continacd)
EMher fivamcial insirmmcals foonlinied)

a)  Fimanchal miigds

The Company classifics s linancial accts ax subioquently measurcd af amortised cost or
mcasured at FVTPL on the basis of both!

o The entity's business model for managing the financial sssets; and
- The contractual cash flow charscteristics of the financial assel.

Consequently, all recognised financial asels are subsequently measunad in their entirety al cither
amortised cost or fir value,

Financial axsety ot oooriized cosf

A fmancial pisel is messured ol amortised cost if it i3 held within & business model whose
objective is to bold financial sssets in onder to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
fermes give nse on specilied dates io cash lows that are solely poyments of principal and inlerest
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets measured ot amoriscd cost include trade
and other reccivables (repressnting amounts receivable for transactions contractied for but not yet
delivered by the end of the period) and cash and cash equivalents.

An assessment of business models for managing financial ssscts is fundamental 1o the
classification of o {inancial asset. The Company determines the business muodels al a level that
reflects how groups of financial asiete are managed tagether 10 achieve a particular business
objective.

For Minancial assets of amortised cost, appropriate allowances for expected credit losses (*ECLs")
are recognised in profit of less in scvordance with the Company’s accounting policy on ECLs.

b Fimanctal Rabilities and oguity

(1) Trwe and other payables

Trude and other payvables are classificd with current Labilitics and are stated &t their nominal
value.

(i1)  Shares issued by the Company
Ordinary shares issued by the Company are classilied as equity instruments.

12
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

3 Material accounting policy infermation (continaed)
Tmpairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the (ollowing - financial asicls ot
o ised cost
Under IFRS 9, loss allowances ane mensuncd on cither of the following bases:

¢ 12-month FCLa: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

¢ lLifetime FOLs thete are FOCLs that result from all poctible defaull events over the
expectod hife of a financial instrument,

The Company meisures loss allowances i an amount equal to lifcume ECLs, except for the
following. which are measuned as 12-month ECLe

*  Finencial asscts that are determined to have a low enedit nsk at the reporting date; and
Other financial assets for which credit nsk (1o, the rsk of default oocurming over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

A financial instrument is determined 1o have low credit risk i71) the financial instrument has a low
risk of defauly, 1) the borrower has & strong capacity 1 mect its contractual cash Mow obligations
im the pear tenm and i) sdverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necesaanly, reduce the ability of the bormower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligitions. The Company considers o linancal asset to have low cradit nsk when ot has an
intermal or external eredit mting of *investment grade’ as per globally understosd definitions. To
the extent applicable, the Company has applied the low credii nsk assumption for the following
classes of fimancial assets - cash ot bank

When determining whether the eradit risk of o linancial ssset s ineremsed significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company copsiders reanonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available withoot undue cost of effort. In this regard, the Company
has an iternal credit scoring system in place thal analyses the credit guality of the counterpartics
accordingly. Such credit scoring system takes into consideration both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s lastorical experience and informed credit
assessment, and also considers the counterpariics” macrocconomic context.,

The Company has clected the rebuttable presumption from [FRS 9 by assuming that the credit
risk on a financial sssct has increased significantly if the financial asset is more than 30 days past
dwe.

Morcover, unless the low credit nsk assumphion s applicd, f the counterparty becomes

downgraded by two notches (or more) based on the credit score asscssmend, the Company docms
the financial asset™s credit risk to have increased significantly.,
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

3 Material accounting policy infermation (continaed)
Tmpairment feonlinuedi

Moreover, the Company considers a financial asset to be in defaull whene

¢ The borrower s unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in {ull, witheu
recotrse by the Company 1o sctions such as realizing secunty (if any is held); or
& The financial aact is more than M days past duc.

The maximum period convidered when estimated FCLs is the maximurm contractual period over
which the Company s exposcd to credat sk

A lnancial assct s oroditampaired whon one or more cvents that have a detnmental mipact on
the estimated future cash {lows of that financial asset have occurmed. Evidence that a financial
psset 18 credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events: significant financial
dafficulty; a breach of contract, such as a defaul or past due event; the lenden(s) of the bormower,
fise poonomic of contractual neasons relating to the bomower”s financial difficulty, heving granted
o the hormvwer a concessaon(s) that the lendenis) would not otherwise consider; it s becoming
probable that the bormower will enter bankrupicy or other financial reorganisstion; or ihe
disppearance of an active market for that financial asset bocatse of fimancial difficulties.

The Company writes off a financial assct when there s information indicating that the
counterpanty i in severe financinl difficulty and there s no realistic proapect of recovery, for
example when the counterparty lns been placed under hiquidstion or has entered imlo bankrepicy
proceedings. For financial asscts, the eredit loss is the differemce betwieen all contractual eash
flowws that ane due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted af the original effective imerest mte. ECLs represent the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

Reverne recogrifion

The Company's revenue streams compnse primanly of invesimen! management s¢rvices 1o
invesiment funds. The majority of contracts stipulate & minimam fived fee below a mimmum
wsets under management threshold. Revenue is olherwise based on o basis points calculation
determined by the mscts under managemeni.

Revenue is measurcd af the transaction price excluding value added tax and other sales faxes.

The tansaction price is allocated 1o each performance obligation based on the individual selling

poice of gach performance obligation, Revenue is recognised when the Company s performance
obligitions have heen satisfied and the following criteria have boen met:

« lhe parties Go the coitroct have appioval the contract;

* the Company can identify cach party’s rights regarding the sarvices to be transfemed,

» the Company can identily the payment lerms for the services to be transfermed;

# the contract has commercial substunce; and

» it m prohable that the Company will colleat the consdertion for the services traasferned

14
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

3 Material accounting policy infermation (continaed)
Reverwe recogrition fcomtinued)

The Company provides asset management services though contracts which have an indefinite
durmtion,

Such services are recognised as o performance obligation satisfied over time as the services ane
provided. Although there ore certnin performance obligations provided “when neoded”, the
majority of the work i performed on a regular basis, and there s no breakdown of costs betweoen
performance obligations.

Reverue i recogmised evenly over the contract peniod (1.2, on a manthly basi), as the customer
15 deemed 1o simuliancously eoave and consume the Services as they ane provided.

Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfics the performance obligation, which is o a
monthly basic

Toixatlni

Uncher cumrent Bermiuda laws, the Company is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuada on cither
income or capital gains. The Company has received an undertaking from the Minister of Finance
in Bermuda exempting i from any such taxes ul least umtil the period 2035, As a resull,
management has made no provision for income taves arising ool of Dermuda laws in these

finnncial statereents.

The Company aceries corporale ipcome Laxes payable to HM Revenue & Customs in the United
Kingdom. The corporste mmcome taxes based on the contnbution to income generated by
emplovees of the Company based in the United Kingdom. As a result, management has made a
provision for income taxes payable in the United Kingdom in these financial statements

(wrremcy transiation

The financial statements of the Company are preseated in its functional currency, the USD, bang
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Transactions
denominated in currencics other than the functional cumemey are translated at the exchange mtes
ruling on the date of tramsaction. Monctary assets and habilities denominated in curmencies other
than the funchional cumrency are re-translated to the functional currency at the exchonge rate nuling
at period-end, Exchange differcnces arising on the scttfement and on the re-translation of
manetany items ane dealt with in the statermend of profit o loss and other comprehensive income.

Net fureign exchange gainy and losses are classifiod with other operuting expenses.
Cash and cush equivalents

Cash and eash equivalents comprise of demand deposits.

Divichends

[Mvidends 1o halders of squity instnaments are recognised as liabilitics in the period in which
they are declared and are debited directly 10 equity.
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

dn.  Imitial application of International Finaacial Reporting Standards

The fllowing amendments to the existing standards issued by the International Accounting
Stendands Board are elfective for the current vear:

Amendmenis to JAS | and IFRS Proctice Statement 2 - Iiscloswre of docosnting Pelicies

The amendments are intondad 1o help preparers in deciding which sccounting palicies 1o disclose
in their financial stalements. The amendments amend 1AS | in the following ways:

*  Anentity s now required 1o disclose its material accounting policy information instead of
ils =ipnificant asccounting policies

*  several paragraphs are added 1o explain how an entity can kdentify material accounting
policy information and 1o give examples of when sccounting policy information i likely
1o be macenial;

¢ the amendments clarify that accounting pelicy information may be material because of its
rudure, even il e related amounts are immaienial,;

o the amendments clarify that accounting policy information is material ifusers of an entity’s
financial statemonts would need it to understand other material information o the financial
statemends; and

« the amendments clorify that il an entity disclosss immaterial accounling policy
information, such infommation shall nol obscure matenal accounting policy information,

In addition, IFRS Practice Staternent 2 has boen amended by adding guidance and cxamples to
explaun and demonstrate the application of the *four-step materality process’ (o sccounting
policy information in order to suppot the amendments to IAS |,

Amendmonty 1o [AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Extimalres

The amendments are intended to help entitics distinguish between sccounting policics and
accounting estimales, The changes te IAS 8 fogus entirely on accounting cstimates and clanify the
fallowang:

#  The definmion of a change in acoounting edimales = replaced with a defimbon off
asccounting cstimates. Under the new definition, accounting cstimales are “monctary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to messurement uncerainty™,

*  [ntities develop accounting estimates if accounting policics require items in financial
statements 1o be measured in @ way that involves measurcment uncertainty.

*  The Board clarifies that a change in accounting estimute that results fom new information
of new developmenix is not the correction of as ermor, In addition, the effects of a change
in an inpat or 8 measurement technigue used to developan accounting estimate are changes
in accounting cstimates if they do not result from the comection of prior penod cmors,

A change in an scoounting cstimate may affect only the cument peniod’s profit or loss, or the
profit or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effoct of the change relating 1o
the current period is recogniscd as income of expense in the cumrent peniod. The cffect, ifany, on
future periods is recognised a8 income or expense in those future periods.

In the opinion of management, ¢ the asdoption of these standards and interpretations do not have a
signillcant impact on the Company’s finuncial stalements.

16
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

4. IFRSs i issoe buot oot yel clfective

The Company has not yet applied any new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but not yet
effective. These are all applicable for financial percods commencing on or after | Janooary 2024,

Amermdmenis fo LAS | = Classiffoation of [iahilites ax Crerent or Non=Uurrent

The amendments affect only the presentation of Habilities in the statement of (inancial position
— podt the amount of timing of recognition of any asset, lahility income or expenses, of the
information that entitics disclose about these ttema, They:

*  clanfy that the classification of labilities as current of non-cusrent should be based on nights
that are in existence al the end of the reporting period and align the wonding in all affected
parngraphs to refer to the “nght™ to defer setifernent by ot least twelve months and make
explicit that only rights in place "8l the end of the reporting periad™ ahould allisct the
classification of a liahility;

o clanify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise
its right to defer settiement of a liability; and

+  muke clear that setthement refers o the tmmsfer 1o the counterpanty of cash, oquuty
instruments, other assets or services.

The amendments are applicd retrospectively for anmual periods beginning on of affter | January
2024, with early application permitied, The IASH lus aligned the effective date with the 2022
amendments o IAS 1. I an entity applics the 2020 amendments for an carlier period. it 15 also
required to apply the 2022 amendments carly.

- 4 Revenue

Revenue represents the amoant receivable for servicss rendered during the vear, as follows:

2023 2022
uso usp
6. her operating income

2033 2022

usp usp
Funds' set-up lees 200,796 240,557
Funds® closing fees 47132 20,920
Director sorvices - 620

247 929 262,102

17
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2023

7. Other operating cxpenscs

2023 2032
uso ueD
Auditor’s remureration 12,000 12,000
Bank charges 8,826 8,932
Company feas 143,040 117,459
Fund closing exponses 3920 7499
Fund set-up expansas 152,468 169,752
Advisors fees (o third paty 52,988 =
Group rechorges 04,127 20,000
Heath Nsurance 22,818 18,4979
Leqal fess 1,937 936
Liabiity Insurance . 45,350
Ofcg exponses, including ront 23,814 23,609
Professional fees 78,762 80,029
Mot foreign oxchange (gainajiosses (175) 1,087
Tax and other charges 4,800 4,500
Bad debt related to fund closures - 6,000
{Over scorualOther opersling expenses [2.441) BT
632,193 G549
H, Sall costs and employes information
2023 022
uso usn
Staff cosls:
Wagos and salares and laxes 77056 AT5.408

The average number of employees inclusive of executive directons was (2022 - 4)
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Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Notes to the financial statements
31 Decamber 2023

9. Fimancial usscits

As ot 3] December 2023, the Company carmies investiments i six entitics whose maan principal
AUV 18 10 serve as o platform that allovs cmerging fund managers 10 get started in the industry.
The Company also camics an mvestment i ils sole subsahary, whose principal activity 15
investment and administrative management of platforms domiciled in the US.A.

Investments
usp
Carrying amoaunt

At 01,01 2022 500
Additions 100
AL 2. 20202023 600

The related entities and subsidiary of the Company held directly were as follows
Elace of %
ncorporation owngrship
Ermsging Manager Platicern Limited Bermuda 100
Emeiging Manager Plationm 2 Limited Bermuda 100
Cayrnan Emerging Manage Plalform SPC Cayman lslands 100
Cayman Emerging Managor Platform (2) SPC Cayman Islands 100
Cayman Emerging Managor Piatform (3) SPC Cayman Islands 100
EAM (USA] Ltd Beormuda 100

1w, Dividends

Durng the reporming porod, the Company pasd a dovidend of {ESD500, 000 (2022 178060, (6K
a5 approved by the directors throughoud the vear.

11, Trade and other receivables

N Dec 31 Do

2023 2022

uso usD

Amounis owed by reiated panies 564,996 380,085
Amounis owed by shareholdor 100,000 100,000
Prepayments 136,665 103,817
Oither recoivables 15,460 R k|
nran 507.043
1 _

The terms and conditions of the amounts due 1o related partics are disclosed in note |7,

18
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Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2022

1. Trade and sther payables

31 Dec 31 Dec
2023 2022
uED uso
Trace and other payabies 209,625 126,662
No interest i charged on trade and other pavables.
13, Other financial liabilivies
M Dec 3 Dec
2022 2021
usD uso
Amounts duo lo relsted partes 600 600
Amounis due 1o related companies 167,409 65,343
198,009 65,043
The terms and conditions of the amounts due 10 relatod partics are disclosed in note 17,
14, Share capital
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
2023 2022
uso usp
On issws 31 Decamber 2022737 Decambar 2023 140 140

At 31 Decomber 2023 and 31 December 2022, the suthonsed share capital comprised 140
ordinary shares af o par value of USDI each. All shares have been issued and called up.

15 Other egiity
M Dec 3 Dec
2023 2022
usD uso
Ofther oqully 481,860 481,860

On 29 August 2017, all of the shares of the Company wiere acquired by its new immediate parent,
GC Apgile Intermediante Holdings Limited, which resulted in the unwinding of the amounts
reccivable from the existing preferepce sharcholders st the time amounting to US349, 960,

Ovther equity amounting to P8I FE 900 (2022 - FIRD] 1E @00 represent capital contribution from
the sharcholders, including an additional contribution of $100,000 contributed in 2022 10 meet
requirements 10 Japan for the Company to provide management company servioss. Such amounts
are unsecured, intorest-froe and repavable exclusively ot the option of the Company.
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16, Cash and cash equivalonis

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following amount

in the statement of Ginancial podition:

Cash ol bank 6nd on hand

3 Dec 3 Dec
2023 2022
usD usb
90,770 28,523

Cash at bank carns interest at finating rates based on hunk deposit mies.

17, Relared pary disclosures

The Company’s immediate parent is GC Agile Intermediate Holdings Limited and its ultimate

parent is Gienstar G,

Amounts owed to related paries o8 disclosed in pote 13, include amounts due 1o the underdving
platforms under management and amounts due 1o related companics for intercompany recharpes.

During the course of the vear, the Company entered into transactions with related pamics &

fisllows:

Other Operafing eapenses and stalf costs:
Related party transactons wilh:

Related companies

Pliatforimns uindes Mg tenl

18 Fair values of fnancial asseis and Anancial Habilities

1dan 23 1o 1 Jan 22 10

M Dec 3 31 Daz 22

usp usD
1,338,646 1,105,430
247909 262,102
423,184 418,704
173,895 173,458

At 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the carming amounts of financial ssets and
financial lisbilnics classificd wath curromt asscts and curmont labilitics respectively approximated
their fasr values due to the short-term maturitics of (hese asscts and labilities.
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19, Financial risk managemont

The exjposures to nsk and the way nsks anse, together with the Company”s objectives, policies
and processes for managmg and measunng these risks are disclosed in more detall below.

The objectives, policics and processes [or meanaging Mnancial risks and the methods used o
measure such risks are subject o continual improvement and development.

Where applicable, any significant changes in the Company™s exposure to financial risks or the
manner in which the Company manages and meaunes these nisks are disclosod below.

Where possible, the Company aims 1o reduce and control risk concentrations. Coscentrations of
linancial risk anise when financial instrurments with similar chamctenstics are mfluenced in the
same way by changes in economic or other factors. The amount of the nisk exposure associated
with finoncial struments sharing similar characteristics is disclosed in more detail in the notes
te the financial statements.

€ e} ik

Financial asscts which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit sk consist
principally of receivables and cash ot hank.

Receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubiful debis.  As disclosed in the matenial
accounting policy information, in terms of [FRS 9, the Company apphes an ECL model. Credit
nsk with respect to reocivables 1s limited due to credit control procedures. [Due 1o the nature of
the business and nesulting trade recervable halances ansing, cnodit nisk with respect 1o reccivahles
is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The camying nmouni of tmde receivables reennded in the financial statements, which 15 net of

impairment losses, represents the Company s trade receivables that are considered to be past due
fior which the Company has not provided ax the amounts. are s1ill considered recoverable.

The Company assesses the arodit qualiny of its costomers by taking into account thar financial
standing ind past experience. During the year no allowance fos doubiful debis has been recognmed
against trede reccivables (2022 - USDNIL

Cash ot bank is placed with Northern Trust International Banking Corporation. This financial
institution has s credit rating of A+ (2023: A<) by Standard and Poor’s,

Currency risk

Forign cumency transactions comprise mainly of transactions in EUR and GBP. The rsk arising
from foreign curmency transsctions i< managed by regulir monitonng of the relevant exchaage
rates and management’s reaction to materuil movements thereto, Currency nisk i not considered
to be significant an the dote of the financial position.

Twteresi rufe riak
Intercit rate nsk is the nsk associated to fuctuations in the rate of inderest in relation 1o interest
bearing linancial asscts and liahalitics beld by the Company. Bank balances represent shor term

balances held caming interest at the current market rates, where the directors belicve that the
Company s exposure o intencst rute risk is not sigmificant.
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19, Finsncial risk managemont (continucd)
Figuidity: risk

The Company monitors and manages its fsk to & shortage of finds by monitonng forocast and
actual cash flowa. Liguidity sk is not considercd to be significant a1 the date of financial position,

{apital rick mamagemen

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are 1o safcguand its ability 10 continue & a
poing concern and fo maximise the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
cyuty balance.

The capital strocrure of the Company conists of cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in pote
16 and items presented within equity in the statement of financial position,

The Company s directon manage the Company s capital structure and make adjustments to it, in
the light of changes in economic conditions or relevant legislation. The capital structure is
reviewed on an ongoing basis

2. Gruarantee
In connection with a credit facility entered by the Company”s indirect parent within the Apex
Giroup dunng the previous penods, all of the Company”s asscts have boen pledged in favour of
the Apex Group's lenders.

1. Evenis aficr ihe reporting daie
As a result of changes o the Invesiment Basiness Act 2003, as amended, the Company applicd 1o

become o Class B Registered Person with the Bermuds Monetuory Authority,  The Company
reccived confirmation of its appointment & March 2004,
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Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd.

2025 51,859 775

2010 9 8
CIMA

TORANOTEC Asset Management Ltd.)

2025

1998 31
2016 12

Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd.

2025 51,859 775

2010 9 8
CIMA

50
112
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1 Mutual Funds Law
Mutual Funds Act
1993

Banks and Trust Companies Law Banks and Trust
Companies Act

Banks and Trust Companies Law

Companies Management Law Local
Companies (Control) Law Banks and Trust Companies
Act Companies Management Act
Local Companies (Control) Act
1.2 1960
1.3 2025 12,900
3,100
1.4
CIMA CIMA
1.5 CFATF
CFATF 1992
1988
FATF 40
2.1 1993
2020
CIMA 16
CIMA

CIMA
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2020
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15
CIMA
2020
2020
4.1
CIMA
MF3
4,482
4.2
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4.2
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2020

4(4)

2020 CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

MF2 MF2A CIMA

4,482

CIMA
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4.3 4(3)
4.3.1
€Y 100,000
(b)
©)
i 100,000
4.3.2 (€)) (b
CIMA 4,482
(©)
CIMA 3,201
4.3.3 43
4@3)
CIMA
4.4
4.4.1 4(3)
100,000
15
4.4.2 CIMA
Offering
Memorandum
4,482
4.4.3
CIMA
5.1
Prospectus Offering Memorandum
CIMA 2020
5.2 CIMA 2020 NAV

NAV
NAV NAV
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NAV

5.3 CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA
5.3.1
5.3.2
5.3.3
5.3.4
5.3.5

5.4
CIMA
5.5 CIMA
2023

CIMA CIMA

5.6

CIMA CIMA

CIMA CIMA

CIMA

6.1

6.2

CIMA 2
50
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6.3
4.2 CIMA
6.4 CIMA

CIMA

4(3) 3.3
4(4) 3.4

6.5 CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4
6.5.5

6.6 CIMA

6.7
CIMA
6.8 50
24,390 50
30,488 8,536
50
36,585 50
42,682 8,536

7.1
7.1.1
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(b)

©
(D

©)
Q)

7.1.

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

.10

A1

.12
.13

.14

.15

30
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7.3.6

(a)

(b)

©)

(d)

(e

@)

@
7.3.7
7.3.8
7.3.9
7.3.10
7.3.11
7.3.12

7.4

7.4.1

7.4.2 LLC

7.4.3 LLC

7.4.4 LLC
7.4.5

17

LLC

LLC

LLC

24

LLC

LLC

LLC

LLC
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7.4.6 LLC
(i) LLC
)
7.4.7 LLC LLC
7.4.8 LLC
LLC
LLC
LLC
7.4.9 LLC
7.4.10 LLC
LLC LLC

7.4.11 LLC 50

7.4.12 LLC
LLC LLC

7.4.13 LLC LLC
LLC

7.4.14 LLC 17

CIMA

8.1 CIMA CIMA
CIMA
8.2

500
CIMA
10
8.3
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
8.4 CIMA 7.3 10
CIMA
10
8.5 CIMA 7.3

CIMA 10
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8

.10
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O 00 00
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7.1

C

1

.4

(]

1

© © ©O© ©
-1 W

MA

8.7
IMA

CIMA

CIMA

8.7

CIMA

4 (b)

.11 CIMA
CIMA

.12

.13

.14
.15

8.9.4

8.9.5

8.13
8.9.4

8.9

CINA
100
CINA
CINA
4(3) 4(3)
CIMA
8.9.5 CINA
CIMA
CINA
8.9.5 CINA
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8.15.1 CIMA

8.15.2 CIMA
CIMA
8.15.2
CIMA
8.9.5

8.15.3

8.16 8.9.4

CIMA
10
8.17 8.15

8.17.1 CIMA
8.17.2

8.17.3

8.17.4

8.9.5

8.18 CIMA 8.17

8.19
8.9.1
8.20 8.17.3

8.21 CIMA

8.22 CIMA
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CIMA
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2024 8 29

Independent auditor®s report

To Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of Jewel Box
Fund

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for qualified
opinion section of our report, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of Jewel Box Fund (the Fund) as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of operations) to 31
December 2023 in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

What we have audited
The Fund"s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

the statement of comprehensive income for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 December 2023;

the statement of changes in equity for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of
commencement of operations) to 31 December 2023;

the statement of cash flows for the period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of
operations) to 31 December 2023; and

the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

Basis for qualified opinion

As at 31 December 2023, the Fund held an investment in Montreux Healthcare Fund Ltd (““Montreux’”),
with a carrying value of US$1,011,329, which represented 13.62% of the total assets of the Fund. As
stated in Note 9.2, Montreux, through its underlying master fund (the ““Master Fund””), held a
single investment in a private healthcare provider, the Active Care Group (““ACG””). During the
period, the Master Fund initiated a process to dispose of ACG and the directors of Montreux closed
Montreux to subscriptions and redemptions and ceased to calculate the NAV of Montreux. Due to the
illiquid nature of Montreux and the lack of relevant financial information for ACG, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the carrying value of Montreux as at 31
December 2023. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary
with respect to the carrying value of Montreux as at 31 December 2023, and the related net
unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, and the statement of cash flows for the
period from 16 September 2022 (date of commencement of operations) to 31 December 2023.

171/178



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o =220 [0 [0k B
Ooooooooooooooooooad

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("I1SAs"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

Independent auditor®s report (continued)

To Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of Jewel Box
Fund

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the 1ESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund"s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
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Independent auditor®s report (continued)

To Apex Fund Services (Cayman) Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of Jewel Box
Fund

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for Apex Fund Services (Cayman)
Ltd. solely in its capacity as trustee of the Fund in accordance with the terms of our engagement
letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

29 August 2024
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Independent auditor™s report
to the members of

Emerging Asset Management Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Emerging Asset Management Ltd. (““the Company””),
set out on pages 6 to 23, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting

policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® /nternationa/ Cade of Ethics for Professional Accountants including
International Independence Standards (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Malta, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and the Auditor®s Report thereon
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Company®s
information, the directors” report and the statement of directors” responsibilities, but does not include the

financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
As explained more fully in the statement of directors” responsibilities on page 5, the directors are

responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
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IFRSs and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,

or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The scope of our audit does not include assurance on the future viability of the Company or on the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the directors have conducted or will conduct the affairs of the Company. The
financial position of the Company may improve, deteriorate, or otherwise be subject to change as a consequence
of decisions taken, or to be taken, by the management thereof, or may be impacted by events occurring after

the date of this opinion, including, but not limited to, events of force majeure.

As such, our audit report on the Company*s historical non-statutory financial statements is not intended to
facilitate or enable, nor is it suitable for, reliance by any person, in the creation of any projections or
predictions, with respect to the future financial health and viability of the Company, and cannot therefore be
utilised or relied upon for the purpose of decisions regarding investment in, or otherwise dealing with
(including but not limited to the extension of credit), the Company. Any decision-making in this respect
should be formulated on the basis of a separate analysis, specifically intended to evaluate the prospects of

the Company and to identify any facts or circumstances that may be materially relevant thereto.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
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that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor"s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, in terms of generally accepted auditing standards, the absence of any reference to a
material uncertainty about the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern in our auditor®s report

should not be viewed as a guarantee as to the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

For the avoidance of doubt, any conclusions concerning the adequacy of the capital structure of the Company,
including the formulation of a view as to the manner in which financial risk is distributed between
shareholders and/or creditors cannot be reached on the basis of these financial statements alone and must

necessarily be based on a broader analysis supported by additional information.

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

The audit report was drawn up on 28 June 2024 and signed by:
Mark Giorgio as Director

in the name and on behalf of

Deloitte Audit Limited

Registered auditor

Central Business District, Birkirkara, Malta

)
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